From: Kelly Damphousse

To: Loretta N. McGregor

Cc: Alan Utter; Julie Wyatt; Henry Torres; Lori Winn; Len T. Frey
Subject: Re: Fall 2021 SGOC Proposals

Date: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 10:28:47 AM

Attachments: 202160002 Emeriti Faculty Status FINAL VOTE[2].pdf
Loretta:

For several years, A-State ITS and ASU System Legislative Audit teams have recommended
that faculty and staff members who separate from the university no longer be allowed to keep
their A-State email address. This is primarily a cyber security issue, along with the recognition
that private email addresses are much more easy to obtain than when the original policy
allowing “forever email” addresses was adopted. This practice is becoming increasingly
common across higher education — indeed, I was only allowed to keep my OU email address
for 30 days after relying on it as my only email address for 20 years.

That said, I recognize that those who have already received the benefit of a post-retirement
email address may have grown accustomed to it, so I have asked for a compromise for them.

The current recommendation before me from A-State ITS is to give existing and 2022 retirees
notice that the “forever email” account policy is being sunset, and will be formally eliminated
sometime before the end of fiscal year 2022. The ITS Help Desk will help those who desire
assistance in getting a free account from Gmail, Outlook, Yahoo, or others. Retirees will still
be able to access other retiree services provided by the campus, and ITS will work with them
as needed to learn how to do that. All 231 existing retirees who currently have a “forever
email” account will be offered the opportunity to keep it, but with the new “Retired” tag on the
address (e.g., kdamp@retired.astate.edu), which will include a fixed signature statement at the
bottom of all outgoing emails (e.g., “This email is from a retiree of Arkansas State University,
and the views and opinions presented in the content of this email are solely those of the email
author and may not represent those of A-State.”

I have cc’d Henry on this email because he may have more to add or you may have questions
for him directly.

While I am at it, I offer modest friendly amendments to the privileges package to eliminate
confusion:

e The addition of “Emeritus” to the rank or title held at the time of retirement;

e A certificate suitable for framing signed by the Chancellor

* Contintedaccessto-Yniversityemaitaddress:

e Use of the Dean B. Ellis Library facilities and electronic resources under the same conditions applicable to
employees;

e Eligibility to purchase a faculty/staff parking decal at the same rates charged to current employees;

® Use of recreational facilities under the same conditions applicable to employees;

e Opportunity to purchase tickets for University athletic and cultural events atdiscotunted+ates at the same
discounted rates available to current employees; and,

® Any other privileges the University may deem appropriate.
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Shared Governance Proposal Review Process
*Official Use Only*

Proposal Name: 202160-02: Emeriti Faculty Status
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Final Status: Passed Date: 12/10/21





Shared Governance Proposal

Date: 10.15.2021

Sponsoring Constituent: Office of the Provost

Statement of the Issue: (This should be in a format appropriate for submission to the ASU
campus community)

The current emeritus status policy is at the ASU System level and is administered through
the Office of the President. There is no campus level emeritus status policy. Dr. Welch has
requested that the emeritus status policy be localized to our institution, and that the System
policy be revoked.

Rationale for Proposal: (Please include if this is a new or a modification of an existing policy
or procedure)

As stated above, Dr. Welch has requested that the emeritus status policy be localized to our
institution. The proposed emeritus status policy for Arkansas State University is attached.
The proposed policy contains more detail than the current System policy (attached below) in
order to tailor it to the needs of our University.

Type of review (i.e., expedited, full, or extended)

Full





[Current Policy]

ASU System
Policy

Effective Date: 07/01/97 Subject:

Emeritus Status

All faculty and staff members with academic rank who have rendered ten or more
years of full-time service to the university at the time of their retirement from the
university are declared to have and shall have emeritus status, with special gratitude
and honor from the Board of Trustees and the president, with all the privileges which
the administrationmay bestow at its discretion.

This policy is administered through the Office of the President.

(Adopted by the Arkansas State University Board of Trustees on August 8,
1997,Resolution 97-23)





[Proposed Policy]

Emeritus Status

Emeritus status is an honorary status that may be awarded to retiring faculty or staff in recognition of
distinguished service to Arkansas State University.

Eligibility
To be eligible for emeritus status, individuals must:

e Be retiring after completing at least ten (10) calendar or academic years of full-time service to
the University;

e Bein good standing with the University; and,

e Have provided distinguished service as determined by the individual’s department or unit.

Distinguished service may be demonstrated by, but is not limited to, the following:

e Extraordinary contributions to the University and/or academic discipline;
¢ Commitment to service activities;

e Active scholarship; and/or

e Devotion to teaching.

Recommendation and Approval process

e Individuals who elect to seek emeritus status must submit a completed Intent to Seek Emeritus
Status Form to their chair or immediate supervisor (see attached);

e Supervisors will forward the Forms of all recommended individuals to the dean or unit
administrator;

e The dean/unit administrator will forward the Forms of all recommended individuals to the
appropriate vice chancellor;

e Vice chancellors will forward the Forms of all recommended individuals to Human Resources;

e Human Resources will verify years of service and University standing, and forward all
recommended individuals who meet eligibility guidelines to the Chancellor for final review and
conferral of emeritus status. Emeritus status is conferred once each year at the end of the spring
semester, and will become effective on July 1 for individuals who have retired prior to that date.

Privileges Conferred

e The addition of “Emeritus” to the rank or title held at the time of retirement;

e Continued access to University email address;

e Use of the Dean B. Ellis Library facilities and electronic resources under the same conditions
applicable to employees;

e Eligibility to purchase a faculty/staff parking decal;

e Use of recreational facilities under the same conditions applicable to employees;

e Opportunity to purchase tickets for University athletic and cultural events at discounted rates;
and,





e Any other privileges the University may deem appropriate.
Rehires

If an emeritus faculty/staff is rehired in a benefit-eligible permanent position, all privileges associated
with the person’s emeritus status will be suspended until such employment ends. The faculty/staff
member’s emeritus status will be reinstated upon conclusion of service in the benefit-eligible
permanent position.

Responsibilities and Conditions

e Emeritus faculty/staff may not use University resources to (i) campaign or advocate for personal or
political interests, or (ii) conduct for-profit business activities.

e Emeritus faculty/staff may only have access to confidential student, personnel, or other official
records to the extent required and authorized within the scope of an approved University activity
and allowed by law.

e Emeritus faculty/staff may neither (i) purport to represent the University in any matter, nor (ii) bind
the University to any commitment or obligation, contractual or otherwise, absent written prior
approval from the appropriate vice chancellor.

e Emeritus faculty/staff may only exercise their privileges in accordance with current University
policies.

Revocation of Emeritus Status
e This section is intended to confirm the existing “at will”
individuals who currently hold emeritus status.

o Atthe sole discretion of the University, emeritus status may be revoked at any time.
Without limiting such discretion, revocation may occur, among other things, when it is
determined that the individual’s conduct, before or after receiving the emeritus designation,
conflicts with the intent and spirit of the designation, is disruptive to the University’s
mission, and/or causes harm to the University’s reputation.

o The appropriate vice chancellor is authorized to make the final recommendation to the
Chancellor to revoke emeritus status. The Chancellor will make the final decision and will
inform the affected individual, as well as the appropriate unit head or department chair,
associate dean, dean, or administrative officer for informational purposes.

o An appeal of this decision may be made in writing to the Chancellor who will make the final
decision on the appeal. The appeal must be made within 10 University business days after
receiving notification of the revocation.

nature of emeritus status and applies to all





[Draft Intent to Seek Emeritus Status Form]

S\

R T Intent to Seek Emeritus Status

Individuals who elect to seek emeritus status must submit this completed form to their chair orimmediate
supervisor.

Name Employee ID Date

Title Department/Unit Hire Date

Below, briefly describe how you have demonstrated distinguished service during your employment at Arkansas
State University in the space below (a CV/resume may be attached). Distinguished service may be demonstrated
by, but is not limited to, the following:

e  Extraordinary contributions to the University and/or academic discipline;

e Commitment to service activities;

e Active scholarship; and/or,

e Devotion to teaching.

To be completed by Human Resources:

Individual is retiring after completing at least ten (10) calendar or academic years of full-time service to the
University:

Yes

No

il

Individual is in good standing with the University:
Yes

No

L

Signature Date

Applicant:

Chair/Supervisor:

Dean/Unit Administrator:

Vice Chancellor:

Human Resources:

Chancellor:
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Otherwise, I approve the rest of the recommendation.
Best,

Kelly

Kelly R. Damphousse, Chancellor
Arkansas State University

P.O. Box 600

State University, AR 72467
Office: 870-972-3030

Cell: 870-253-9548

kdamp@astate.edu
@kdamp

From: "Loretta N. McGregor" <Imcgregor@astate.edu>

Date: Tuesday, February 22, 2022 at 1:59 PM

To: Kelly Damphousse <kdamp@astate.edu>

Cc: Alan Utter <autter@astate.edu>, Jules Wyatt <jwyatt@astate.edu>
Subject: RE: Fall 2021 SGOC Proposals

Thank you very much. The SGOC meets today and will be pleased to hear there is a resolution to at
least one of the proposals.

From: Kelly Damphousse

Sent: Tuesday, February 22, 2022 12:50 PM

To: Loretta N. McGregor <Imcgregor@astate.edu>

Cc: Alan Utter <autter@astate.edu>; Julie Wyatt <jwyatt@astate.edu>
Subject: Re: Fall 2021 SGOC Proposals

Loretta, I am circling back on these two proposals.

I believe we are approaching a final decision on the emeritus faculty/staff proposal. I regret
that it has taken so long but there is one small-ish point that I am snagged on (“forever emails”
for emeritus faculty/staff). Eliminating this practice is something that has been discussed by
the University IT for a few years now, and I prefer to get THAT question settled before I
approve these recommendations. Everything else looks good on that proposal.

I am approving the “Course Numbering Proposal.” I apologize that conflating the two
proposals in my mind delayed the approval of this second proposal, with which I had no
concern.
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
Date: Friday, December 10, 2021 at 11:29 AM
To: Kelly Damphousse <kdamp@astate.edu>

Cc: Alan Utter <autter@astate.edu>
Subject: Fall 2021 SGOC Proposals

Dr. Damphousse,

The following proposals have completed the shared governance process. It is the recommendation
of the SGOC that all proposals be adopted. The votes are listed below. Thank you for your patience
and support of shared governance.

Proposal 20216001: Lower Level Credit Hours Proposal 20216002:
Faculty Senate Yea Emeriti Faculty
Dean’s Council Yea Status
— - Faculty Yea

Chairs’ Council Yea Senate

SGA Yea Dean’s Yea
Council
Chairs’ Yea
Council
SGA Yea
Staff Yea
Senate

Regards
LNM

Fall 2021 Office Hours. Virtual or F2F
MW 3:00-3:50 pm
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TR 10:00-10:30 am

T ONLY 1:30-3:30 pm

R ONLY 1:00-2:00 pm

Please email for appointment



